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NOTICE

MOCTICE is hereby given that the 10" Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of the Members of NIIT
Institute of Process Excellence Limited will be held on Wednesday, 11" day of Iuly, 2018 a1
9:00 AM. at its registered office at 8, Balaji Estate, First Floor, Guru Ravi Das Marg, Kalkaji, New
Dethi -110019, 1o transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Campany for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2018, together with the Reparts of the Auditors and the
Directors therseon.

2. Ta appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vijay & Thadani (DIN: D0042527), who retires by
ratation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment

3. Toappoint statutory auditors and fix their remuneration and in thistegard to consider and
if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the fallowing resclution as an
Ordinary Resolution

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 138, 142 and other apphcable
pravisions; if any of the Companies Act 2013 {"the Act”) and the Companies [Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification{s} or re-énactment(s) thereof
tor the time being in foree), M{fs. SCV & Co. LLP, Chiartered Accountants, Mew Delhi (FRN
0D0235N / N500089), be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company,
te hold office from the tonclusion of the ensuing 18™ Annual Géneral Meeting till the
conclusion of 15™ Annual Genaral Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2023, at
such remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company”

By Order of the Board
For NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Umited

Digeng-

Date : May 11, 2018 Divyang Jain
Place : Gurugrarm Company Secretary
Membership No.: A3BS39

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETIMG IS ENTITLED TO APROINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE
A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

PROXY FORM DULY FILLED IN AND COMPLETED IN ALL RESPECT IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE
MUST BE LODGED WITH THE COMPANY AT ITS REGISTERED OFFICE NOT LESS THAN FORTY-
EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE MEETING.

2. Register of Directors’ Shareholding shall-be open for inspection at thé Registered Office of
the Company during normal busingss hours, except Saturday's, upto and Including the date
af AGM.
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BOARD'S REPORT

To

The Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 10" Annual Report of your Comparty along with
the Audited Financial Statement for the Financial Year (“FY") ended March 31, 2018

Financial Highlights

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) from April 1, 2017 with a
transition date of April 1, 2016. The financial statements has been prepared in accordance with
Ind AS as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended,

During the year under review, your Company has recorded total income. of Rs, 152.71 millien
anda profit after tax of Rs. 24.32 million. The summarized financial results are as under

(Amounts in Rs. Miliion)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Revenue from Operations 136.19 185:85
Other Income 16.52 1658
Tatal Income 152.71 21241
Rrofit / (Loss) before tax 2765 47.72
Tax Expense 3.33 453
Met Prafit / [Loss) 24.32 42.79

Dividend and Transfer to Reserves

Your Directors have not recommended any dividend for the year under review, considering the
funds reguirements of the Company for its operations, Your Company has not transferred any
sum to the general reserve.

State of the Company’s Affairs

During the year under financial review, the company continued to engage with Genpact, its ley
customer, as a value-adding partner. With the impact of digital disruption, and the review of
strategic direction that they were going through, the company had planned for de-growth in
the valume of business fram Genpact. While the effort was to reduce the impact of this by
growing other customer accounts, your company was affected by the overall pressure on
companies in this sector to protect their margins and reduce the consumption of outsourced
training services. However, there was constant effort to bring new ideas for consideration by
customers and address emerging opportunities,

Revenues during FY18 decreased to Rs 136 million from Rs 196 milliar in FY17, which is 30.6%
lower in FY18. While the company initiated a number of cost management initlatives, during
the year FY18, which has resulted the operating profits, forthe year at Bs. 11 Millicn 25 against
Rs. 32 Million in FY17 despite of de-growth in revenues by 30.6% in FY18. EBIDTA margin of the
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company stood at 8%, and the Profitafter Tax (PAT) was Rs 24 million down fraom Rs 42:million
in FYAF.

Future QOutlook

According to NASSCOM, the revenues for India’s Business Process Management (BPM) sector
is expected toincrease from USD 30 billion in FY17 to USD 50-55 billion by 2025, It is projected
that digital streams would account for-60-70 percent of the BPM service providers' revenue by
2025, overtaking traditional streams, with advanced techrology salutions and intelligent
automation driving much of this growth.

FY18 has given us a view to the disruption that the Digital Technologies will bring in the BPM
space. With significant directional changes in the operating strategy at Genpact and other
customers, your company is looking at FY19 as a year to strengthen existing partnerships with
its tustomers with the use of Digital Technologies in addressing business needs. This approach
will also be used to win new deals

We have seen changes in the traditional product mix and reduction in spends In discretionary
areassuch as Professional Skills Development. While'somia of this was 3 response to the margin
pressures that the industry faced in FY18, ocur conversations with customers suggest that even
in the future they will encourage their employees to seek out rejevant content freely available
online. As reported last year your company also participated in industry efforts such as the
MASSCOM Futures Skills task force to better understand and prepare forthe skills that industry
would look for in the future. Since, then NASSCOM has announced a shared utility platform
maodel to enable greater awareness generation of Future Skills and Future Skills development.
Your company is exploring options to be part of the ecosystem that NASSCOM is promoting.
Your company will continue to invest in strengthening its products & services so that it can
leverage the shared utility platform and marketplace that NASSCOM is creating:

in parallel, your company is focusing on emerging needs of BPM customers as they evalve their
talent acguisition & development strategy. We are seeing a renewed opportunity to provide
end-to-end Talent Acquisition through a Source-Train-Hire service offering. In various customer
conversations, these needs have emerged to be both urgent and important as companies seek
to variabillze their talent acquisition costs and do on-demand hiring to aveid unutilized bench-
strength. Further, companies are locking for freshsources of talent to tackle escalating costs &
attrition due to over-dependence on lateral hiring. In this context the STH model in particular
will become important to BPM customers as they will be able to onboard fresh talent that is
better trained, yet more affordable.

Asthe lines between the IT and ITeS industries blur in the future, your company recognizes the
need to offer an integrated portfolio of offerings to its customers through appropriate
partnerships, including NIT, Your company is actively exploring options to enable it to offer
learning solutions in emerging areas such as Robotic Process Automation and Big Data Analytics
that are becoming increasingly important for its customers, Additionally; it will work closely
with NIIT to bring its larger portfolio of IT and Domain training to BPM custamers. In parallel,
we are also committed to upskill cur own talent in this space to help drive active engagements
with existing and riew customers.

&
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Directors

In accordanice with the pravisions of the Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 |"the Act"),
Mr, Vijay K Thadani and Mr. Udal Singh, Directors are liable to retire by rotatian at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Mr. Vijay K Thadani, Director being eligible, has offerad
himself for re-appaintment, whereas Mr. Udai Singh, Director has opted 1o retire thereat. The
Board has not recommended for any appointment in plage of Mr. Udai Singh.

During the year under review, Mr, Rahul K Patwardhan resigned from the diréctorship of the
Company with effect from the close of business hours on luly 12, 2017, Mr. Amit Ray and Mr
Sapnesh kumar Lalla, were appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board
of Directors at its meeting held on May 10, 2017, and appointments were regularizéd by the
Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on July 12, 2017,

Mr. Amit Aggarwal resigned from the directarship of the Company with effect from March 31,
2018,

All Independent Directors of the Company have given confirming that they meet the criteria of
independence as provided in the Section 149(6) of the Act,

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
During the year under review Mr. Divyang lain was appointed as Company Secretary of the
Company w.af. July 12, 2017.

As on the date of this report, following are KMPs of the Company:
s Mr. Sanjeev Dnar, Manager
e Mr, Gaurav Reihan, Chief Financial Officer
s Mr. Divyang fain, Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f luly 12, 2017)

Meetings of the Board

The Board of Directors met 5 {five) times in the financial year 2017-18, ie.0n May 10, 2017,
July 12, 2017, October 11, 2017, lanuary 11, 2018 and March 23, 2018, The intervening gap
between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Act.

Audit Committee

In line with the statutory provisions of the Act and as a measure of good Corporate Governance
with @ view to provide assistance to the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, an Audit
Committee of the Directors was constituted. More than two-third of the members of the
Committee are Independent Directars and every Member has rich experience in the financial
sector. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee. Statutory Auditors-and
Seniar Management Persannel of the Company also attend the meetings by invitatian. The
recommendations of the Audit Committee are placed before the Board for its consideration
ard approval.

Currently, the Audit Committeg comprises the following Directors:

s Mr. Anand Sudarshan
s Mr. Surendra Singh
e Mr. Yogeridra Jain
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Momination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted to Identify
persons who .are gualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management, to formulate the criteria far determining gualification, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the beard a policy, relating to the remuneration
for the directors, key manageria! personnel and other employess, to carry out evaluation of
other director's perfarmance. The Nemination and Remuneration Committee of the Company
is also entrusted to frame policies and system for employee stock option plans and to formulate
and administer the company's Employee stock optien plans frem time to time. The
remuneration policy of the Campany is aimed to reward performance, based on review of
achievements on a regular basis:

Currently, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the following Directors:

s Mr. P Rajendran

s Mr. Anand Sudarshan

e Mr. Surendra Singh

e Mr Yogenoralain

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Company s aimed at rewarding performance, based on review
of achievements on a regular basis. The objective and broad framework of the Remuneration
Policy is to consider and determine the remureration, based on the fundamental principles of
payment for performance, for potential, and for growth. The Remuneration Palicy refiects on
certain guiding princigles of the Cempany such as aligning remuneration with the longer term
interests of the Company and its sharehaolders, gpromoting a culture of meritocracy and creating
g linkage to corporate and individual performance, and emphasizing on line expertizse and
market competitiveness so as to attract the best talent,

Meeting of independent Director
During the year under review, meeting of the Independent Directors was held on Mareh 23,
2018 in accordance to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act and rules thereto.

Auditors

Pursuant tothe provisions of Section 139 of the Act and other applicable provisions of the Act
and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. Ghosh Khanna 8 Co., Chartered
Accountants, New Delhi (FRN D03366N), was appointed by the members as Statutory Auditors
of the Company for three years from the conclusion of 8" Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of 10" Annual General Meeting of the Company subject to ratification of the
appointment at every Annual General Meeting. The term of M/s. Ghosh Khanna & Co,
Chartered Accduritants as Statutory Auditor shall expire at the conclusion of this 10 AGM of
the Company.

Accordingly, as per the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (as amended frem time to time), the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on May 11, 2018, as recommended by Audit Committee, considered and recommended
the appointment of Mfs. SCV & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (FRN
000235N/N500083), as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years commencing
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from the conclusion of the ensuing 10th AGM till the conclusion of 15th AGM of the Company
to be held in the year 2023

M/s. 8OV & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants Delhi has consented to the said appointment and
confirmed that the appointment, if made, would be within the limits specified under Section
141(2He) of the Act. M/fs, SCV & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants has also confirmed that It is
net disqualified to be appointed as statutory auditor in terms of the provisions of the proviso
to Section 13%{1), Sectionr 141(2) and Section 141(3) of the Act and the provisions of the
Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The Board of Directors recommended the appointment of proposed Statutory Auditors’ to the
members for their approval.

Auditors” Report
The Report of the Auditars on the Annual Financial Statermnent of your Company for the Financial
Year 2017-18 forms part of the Annual Financial Statement and the same is self-explanatory.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has adequate system of internal control for planming; review, revenue
recognition, expenses authorization, capital expenditure approval, risk management,
investments etc. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for praperly
maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statement

Deposit
Your Company has not accepted any fixed deposit from public,

Share Capital
There is o chiange in the 'share capital of the Company during the period under review.

Particulars of loans, guarantee or investment
Detalls of Loan, guarantees or Investments covered under the provisions of section 186 of the
Act, are given in the notes to the Financial Statement.

Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions entered into by the Comgany during the financial year were in
the ardinary course of business and on an arm's length basis. There is no materially significant
related party transaction made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, key Managerial
Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of
the Company at large.

Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134{3}(h)
read with Section 188 of the Act, in Form ACC 2 is annexed here with as “Annexure B”. All
Related Party Transactions were approved by the Audit Committee and were also approved by
the Board of Directors as a good Corporate Governance.

Information relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Abscrption, Research and
Development, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo and other information forming part of the
Directors’ Report in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder

a) Conservation of energy
Although the operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the management

has been highly conscious of criticality of conservation of energy at all the operational
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leveis and efforts are made |n this direction an a continuous basis, Adeguate measures
have been taken to reduce energy consumption whenever possible by using erergy
efficient equipment. The reauirement of disclosure of particulars with respect to
conservation of energy as prescribed in Section 134(3){m) of the Act read with rule 8
of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company-and hence
are not provided.

Technology absorption
The Company realizes that in order to stay competitive and avoid obsalescence, it

would have to invest in new technology across multiple product lines and services

offered by it, Hence, the Company is conscientiously making every effort to develop
methods for adapting and effectively deploying new technotogies.

Research and Development

The Company believes that technological obsolescence is a reality, Only progressive
research and development will help us to measure up to future challenges and
opportunities. During the year, no amount has been incurred on the Ressarch &
Development.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

{1 Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase exports, development
of new export markets for products and services and export plans.

The Company does not have any export earnings.

(if) Expenditure and Earnings in Foreign Currency
During the year under review, the Company had no following foreign exchange
earnings and outgo; (Previous Year- NIL)

Extract of Annual Return
The details forming part of the extract of the Arnual Return in-ferm MGT-9 in term of Section
92(3) of the Act is annexed herewith as "Annexure A" and forms part of this report,

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
As required under Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, the Directors of the Company hereby state
and confirm:

that in preparation of Annual Accounts for the financial year, the applicable Accounting
Staridards have beer followed along with the proper explanations relating to material
departures;

that they have selected such accounting policles described in the notes to accounts
which have been consistently applied except where otherwise stated and made
judgment and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and of profit of the:

Company for the that year;

that they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adeguate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities,
that the Annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

that they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systers are adequate and operating effectjvely.

2078
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Secretarial Standards

The apglicable Secretarial Standards e 55— 1 Secretarial Standard on Mestings of the Board
of Directors and S5 — 2 : Secretarial Standard on General Meetings Issued by Institute of
Company Secretaries of India have been duly followed by the Company.

Acknowledgement

Your Directors take this oppartunity to place on record their appreciation for the valuable.
support and guidance received from Genpact India and other partner organizations, valued
Customers, vendors, Bankers, Employees and the holding company, NIIT Limited.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
NIIT Institute of Prgress Excellence Limited

Place : Gurugram Vijay K Thadani
Date : May 11, 2018 DIN; 00042527
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Annexure B

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section {1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms léngth
transactions under third proviso thereto

{Pursuant ta clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)
1 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis
Name(s) of Mature of Duration of Salient terms of | Justification | date(s) of | Amount | Date on which
the related contracts / the contracts/ | the contracts or | for entering | approval | paid as l the special
party and arrangements | arrangements | arrangements or | into such by the advances, | resolution
nature of [ transactions | [ transactions | transactions contracts or | Board if any: was passed in
relationship including the arrangemen general
value, if any ts or meeting as
transactions required
under first
| proviso to
section 188
MIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis
Name(s) of the Nature of Duration of the Salient terms of the contracts or | Date(s) of Amount
related party and contracts / contracts/ arrangements or transactions | approval by | paid as
nature of arrangements arrangements/ including the value, if any | the Board advances, If
relationship [ transactions transactions | any:

NIL

Place : Gurugram

Date :

May 11, 2018

Vijay K Thadani
DIN: 00042527

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

NIIT Institute of Pr

ess Excellence Limited
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GHOSH KHANNA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

L-2A, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-110016, India
Phenes: +91 (011} 2696 2081/82, Fax: +91 (011) 2696 2985
E-mail: gke@gkcindia.com website: www.gkeindia.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF NIT INSTITUTE OF PROCESS EXCELLENCE LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of M /s NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018 and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the statement of Cash Flow and statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after
referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”],

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”} with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income ,cash flows and change in the equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rule issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and cther irregularities;

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and. estimates-that are reasonable -

‘and”pradent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Anditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit,

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditi ng standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143 {10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements is free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Ind
AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financia) statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

Branciy

Kolkata: P-3, C. I T. Road {7th Flr.), Scheme - L V, Kolkata - 700 014, Tel +91(053) 2216 8321, Fax: +91 (033) 2216 8320, Email: gkocal@gmai.l.mm

— T T T A T e T T



Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS

- financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view

in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2018, and its financial performance including other comprehensive income , its cash flows and change in
the equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor'’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"} issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A” statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Grder.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that

(a)
(b)
{<)

. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

fd) e

{e)

M

(g)

i}
i)

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books,

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement and statement of change in
equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our Opinlo:n,the ..aforesaid.. IndASﬁnﬂnCialStatementS mmply WlththeACCDuntingStandardS

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the relevant rule issued thereunder.

On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2018, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from
being appointed as a Director in ferms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectlveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
B

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies ( Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us;

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

) The company does not require transferring any amount to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

For GHOSH KHANNA & CO.
Chartered Accountant
Firm Registration No: 003366N

@M\J\Mu L,
Amit Mi

Partner

Membership No. 508748

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 11, 2018




ANNEXURE “A”TQ THE INDEPENDENT AUDITQRS REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date)

1. In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

(3) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantltatwe detalIs
and situation of fixed assets

(b) The Company has a regular pregramme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner. over a period of three years. In accordance with this
programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name -of the
Company.
2. In respect of the Company’s inventories:

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any inventory.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company

3. Thecompany has granted any unsecured loan to the party covered in register maintained under section 189

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

(a) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had been
granted te the bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act were
not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company

(b) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the party has repaid the principal amount as stipulated and was aiso
regular in the payment of interest, where applicable.
{c) There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan granted to a body corporate listed in the register

mainiained under section 189 of the Act.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
deposits. Therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

6. The provisions of clause {3}(vi} of the Order are not applicable to the Company as the Company is not
covered by the Companies {Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014.

7. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(2)  The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with
the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of
employees’ state insurance and duty of excise.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess
and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2018 for a period of more than six




(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of duty of customs
which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

a. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks, government or _
debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

9, The Company did not raise any money by way of in.itial public offer or further public offer {including debt
instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix} of the Order is not applicable.

10.  According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or emplovees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

11.  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

12,  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to ué, the Company is not a nidhi
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable.

13.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards. '

- 14, -According to the information and explanations give to us and based on'our examination of the records of the -
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year.

15.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not enterad into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bénk of India Act 1934.

For GHOSH KHANNA & CO,
Chartered Accountant

Firm Registration No: 003366N

| @w\ \JMH L.
Amit Mittal

Partner
Membership Nc_). 508748

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 11, 2018

Annexure - B to the Anditors’ Report




Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s NIIT Institute of Process Excellence
Limited ({“the Company”) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls -

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("'ICAF). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the

* timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and.deemed ..

to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Contrels and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that- ' '

{1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
disposal of the assets of the company;

(2) provide assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention and timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over .
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal contral stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For GHOSH KHANNA & CO.
Chartered Accountant

Registration No: 003366N '

Amit Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 508748

- Place: Gurugram
Date: May 11,2018




NIIT Instituie of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL20BSPLC 76254
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013

{Amount in Rs. ﬂmuéands, unless cificrwise stated)

As at
Notes March 31, 2018 Mareh 31, 2007 April 1, 2016
| ASSETS
| Non-current assets )
| Property, plant and equipment _ _ 3 285,87 344.52 © o 306.74
Intangible Asseis 4 : 013 15.62 67446
Financial Assets
Other Financial Asgets : & (i) 15907 15907 123 43
Defirred Tax Assels ’ : 3 13,01442 10,489.01 427187
Other Non-Current Assets 1 20,121.08 21,381.81 31,143.73
" Total Nom-current assets 33,583.57 32,390.03 41,525.28
Current Assets
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 5 i) 27,155.46 20,378.24 3,479.70
Cnsh and Bank Balances 5 (i) 7,061.66 18,702.16 40,900.61
Bank Balances other than above . 8(iv) - 1(1,004.00 -
Dther Financial Assels £ (i) 152,959.72 156,655.70 107,209.07
Other Current Assels ki 965.50 6,179.61 597253
Total Current Assels 128,142.34 211,918.71 163,161.91
TOTAL ASSETS ' - 261,728,591 244&05.74 204,687,19
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 3 220,000,080 220,000.00 220,000.00
Other Equity L} 20.,355.01 (3,446.68)} {46,188.20)
i TR T 240355.01. . 216,553,532 173,811.80
* LIABILTTIES
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities _ i
Trade Payables 100) 10,362.70 13,402.03 17,509.12
_ Other Financial Lisbilities 104l) £,009.31 8,924.24 7,702.79
. Provisions 11 3,631.28 3,217.32 2,594.23
Cther Current Liabilities ) 12 1,36T7.61 2,508.83 3069.25
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 21,570.90 17,752,421 30,875.3%
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 261,725.9% 244,305.74 204,687,102

The accompanying notes form an integrat part of the these financial statements,
This is the Balance Sheet refezred 1o in our report of even date,

] H  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Ghosh Khanna and Company f L NSIT Instifute of Process Exgellence Limited
Firm Registration No.: 003366N { . k/

Charlered, Accountants

\Jﬂ'\'\ L.

Amit Mittal Fan Amit Roy
Partner . Pirector
Membership Mo. 508748 42531 D - 07838197
Y e X
D
Place: Gurugram : Gaurav Relhan Divyang Jain
Date: May 11, 2018 Chiaf Financial Officer ) Company Secrelary

Flace; Gumugraim
Date: May 11, 2018




NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited

CIN: U72300DL200SPLC176254
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018
{Amount in Rs, thousands, wnless otherwise stated)

Income
Revenue from Operations
Other Income

Total Revenue.

Expenses

Employee Benefits Expense

Professional & Technieal Quisourcing Expenses
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Other Expenses

Total Expenses
Profit/ (Loss) before tax
Tax expense:

~Curtent Tax
-Deferred Tax

_. Profit/ (Loss) for theyear

Other Cumprehenéive Income :

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
a) Remeasurement of the defined benefit obligation

b) Income tax relating to these itemns

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the period

Earnings/ (Loss) per equity share (Face Value Rs. 10/- each):

- Basic

Year Ended
Note March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
13 136,192.50 195,865.26
14 16,516.47 1654711 -
152,708.97 212,412.37
15 56,530.88 57,186.73
32,586.33 91,502.88
3&4 187.75 931.68
16 15,7531 15,069.75
125,058.67 164,691.04.
27,650.30 47,721.33
18
5,649.01 6,141.96
2,312135) (1,211.14)
24,313.44 . 4279081, .
(725.01) (43.99)
213.26 -
{511.75) (48.99)
23,801.69 42,741,52
22
11 1.95

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our repost of even date,

For Ghosh Khanna and Company
Firm Registration No.: 003366N
Chartered Accountants

flord

Amit Mittal

P@'tncr
Membership No. 508748

Place; Gurugram
Date; May 11, 2018

, For and on behalf of the Board of Birectors of
NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited

Gaurav Mhe”
Chief Financial Qfficer

Piace: Gurugram
Date: May 11, 2018

.

Amit Roy 6

Director
DIN - 07138197

oY jﬁ"‘/"a ‘
Divyang Jain

Company Secretary




NIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL2008PLC176254

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rs, thousands, untess otherwise stated)

a) Equity Sharc Capital

Particulars Numbers Amount

Balance as a¢ April 1, 2016 22,000,000 220,060.00

Changes in equity share capital during the year - -

Balance as at 31 March 2017 ‘ 22,000,000 220,000.00

Changes in equity share capital duting the year - -

Balance as at 31 March 2018 22,000,000 220,000.00

h) Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars .
Retained Total
Earnings

Balance at April 01, 2016 {46,188.20) (46,188.20}

Profit for the year 42,791.51 42.790.51

Otker comprehensive income (48.99) (48.99)

Balance as at March 31,2017 (3,446.68) (3,446.68)

"|Changes in équity for 2018

Profit for the year 24,313.44 24.313.44

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (511.75) {511.75)
{Balance as at March 31, 2018 20,355.01 20,355.01

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the these financial statemenis.
This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

~ For Ghosh Khanna and Company
Firm Registration No.: 003366N
Chartered Accountants

G-

Amiit Miteal
Partner
Membership No. 508748

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 11, 2(_)18

§ For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
INIIT Institutq of Process Excellence Limited

DIV - 00042531

bp””

Gaurav KaThaw
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 11, 2018

Amit Roy
Director
DIN-(7138197

Divyang Jain

- Company Secretary




NHT Iastitute of Provess Excellence Limited

CIN: U72300DL2008PLC176254

Cash Flow Statement for ¢he year ended March 31, 2018

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit/ {Loss) before tax

Add / (Less):

Depreciation and Amortisatien

Provision for Doutaful Debts

Provision for Donbtful Advances
Unrealised Foreign Exchange (Gain)f Loss
Employee Share Based Payment Expenses
Interest Income .
Loss/(Profit) on sale of Fixed Assets
Provision / Other Liabilities Written Back

Operating Profit before Working Capita? Changes

Addf (Less): Changes in Operating Worldng Capital;
Increasef (Decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase/ (Decrease) in Shoct Term Provisions

Inersase/ (Decrease) in Cther Current Liabilities
Increasef (Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liabilities

- “-(Tncrease) Decrease in Current Trade Recaivablog: - = = v o oo

(Increase) Decrease in Mon-Current Financial Assets
(Increase) Decrease in Current Financial Assets
{Increase)’ Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets
{Increass) Decrease in Other Current Assets

{Increase) Decresse in Other Bank Balances
Cash generated from operations

Direct Tax- (paid including TDSY refind received (nef)
Net Cash from Qperating activities (A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTEVITIES:

Purchase of Fixed Assets {including Capital Work—in—pmgress,
internally developed intangitles and Capital Advances)
Proveeds from sale of Fixed Asscts

Interest received

Loan Given to Holding Company

Loan Given to Holding Company received back

Net Cash used in Investing activities (B)

ChARTERED

{Amaount in Rs, thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Vear ended
Marech 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
27,650.30 47,721.33
187.75 931.68
954,58 5130
- 253.45
0.90 .81
66,22 405.33
(16,372.45) (15,269.67)
(137.03) 24.85
- (15,300,03) (708.83) (14,308.70)
12,350.27 33,412.63
(3,040.23) (4,106:28) -
@719 574,10
(1,441.22) (260,42)
(2,381.15) 920.95
- {35.59)
24,068.20 (5,519.29)
- (253.45)
520401 (207.08)
10,000.00 24,590.12 {10,000,00) (30,836.90)
36,940,32 2,573.73
{4,601.54) 3.619.96
32,338.85 _ 6,195.69
(142.32) (358.99)
162.74 22.52
16,000,23 10,942.33
{184,000.00) {124,000.00)
12400000 25.000.00
{43,979.35) {28,394.14)
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Notes:

NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72306D1.2008P1.C176254
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

{Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

CASH FLOW_FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net Cash fmrlm' {used in) Financing activities {(C)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents {1.\} +(By+(C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year (Footnote 1)

Cask and cash Equivalents as at the end of the year (Fooinote 1)

1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance with Banks
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Ghosh Khanna and Company
Firm Registration No.: 0033668
Cheartered Accountanis -

Almt Mittal

Membersh:p No. 508748

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 11,2018

Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(11,640.50) (22,198.45)
18,702.16 40,900.61
7,061.66 18,702.16
7 061,66 18,702.16
7.061,66 18,702.16

For and en Lekalf of the Board of Divectors of
NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited

L

Amit Roy
Director
DIN - 07138187

¥
o

Divyang Join
Compeny Sccretary

Gaurav Rethoss
Chief Financiod Qfficer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May i1, 2018




2.a)
0]

NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DE2008PLC176254 .
. Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

COMPANY INFORMATION

- NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited ('the Company’} is 4 talent development company which was set up in 2008. The Company

currently offers leamning and knowledge solutions across the globe to enterprises and various institutions, The Company is a public limited
Company. The registered place of business of the Company is : 8, Balaji Estate, First Floor Guru Ravi Das Marg, Kalkaji New Delhi
110019, India.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements, These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation
Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standard
(‘Ind AS’) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting. Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (‘MCA”),

The said financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 are the fiest Ind AS Tinancial statements of the Company. The transition to
Ind AS has heen carried out from accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read topether with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (‘IGAAP’), which is considered as the Previous GAAP, for purposes of Ind AS
101. Refer note 36 for an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position,
finaneial performance and cash flows. '

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements® and

“division II of schedule I of the Companiés Act 2013. Further, for the purpose of clarity, various items are aggregated in the statement of

(i)

b)

profit and loss and balance sheet. Nonetheless, these items are dis-aggregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where
applicable or required. All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in thousands of Indian Rupees (‘Rupees’ or ‘Rs.*)
and are rounded to the nearest Thousand, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on May 11, 2018.

Rasis of measurement .

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

» financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value or amortised cost
* Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured &t fair value

* Share-based payments (ESOP’s)

Current - non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current as follows:

Assels

An assei is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

» it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

» it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

* it is expecied to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or

* it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets (including deferred tax assetsy are classified as
non-current.

Lizbilitics

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- *itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

* it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

= it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

» the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability fot at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Terms of a Hability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
insiruments do not affect its classification. :
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NIIT Insiitute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL2098PLC176254
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Opérating cycle :

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, Based on
the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle being a period of 12 months for the purpose of clasmﬁcanon of assets and liabilities as current
and non- current.

Revenue recognition .
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade
allowances, rebates, discounts and taxes.

When two or more revenue generating activities or deliverables are provided under a single arrangement, each deliverable that is
considered to be 2 separate unit of account s accounted separately. For allocating the consideration, the Company has measured the
revenue in respect of each separable component of a transaction at its fair value, in accordance with the principles given in Ind AS 18.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probabls that future economic benefits will
flow w0 the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as described below. The Company bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

() Revenue from the fraining services is recognised over the period of the course programs. For fixed-price contracts, revenue is
recognised based on the actual service provided till the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the fotal services to be provided
(percentage of completion method). Revenue from time and material contracts is recognised as related services are performed.

Other Income
Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial

asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms
“of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, ¢all and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Segment reporting :

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM).

The manager and CFO of the Company are considered as chief operating decision makers who assesse the financial performance and
position of the Company, and make strategic decisions,

Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payablc on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax raie in India adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities atiributable fo temporary differences and to unused tax osses.

The current income tax charge is calcutated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted in India af the end of the reporting
period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax autherities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temperary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financia! statements. Deferred income iax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected 1o apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to uiilise those temporary differences and losses.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity,
as the case may be.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit entitfement under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as a deferred tax
asset when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it in the form of adjustment of future mcome tax liability, will flow
to the Company and the asset can be measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement is set off to the extent allowed in the year in which the
Company becomes liable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates. MAT oredit entitlement is reviewed at each reporting date and is

“recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. MAT credit entitlement

has been presented as deferred tax asset in Balance Sheet. Significant management judgement is required to determine the probability of
recognition of MAT credit entitlement and deferred tax.
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NHT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL200SPLC176254 .
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Ocher financial assets

i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

« those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit ot loss), and

* those measured af amortised cost, ]

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows,

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

ii) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair vatie. Any subsequent change in the fair value is charged to profit

or loss.

iii) Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortized cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk,

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted under Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments”, which
requires expected lifetime josses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

Cash and cash cquivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the stafement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with

financtat institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with eriginal maturities of three momnths or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade receivables

- Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently adjusted for expected credit loss using the effective inferest- - - - - -

Property, plant and equipment

Frechold fand is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation,
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the jtems. ’ _
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when if is probable that
future economic henefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any compenent accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
1o profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Fransition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to confinue with the net carrving value of all of its properly, plant and equipment
recognised as at 1 Aprit 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that net carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant
and equipment,

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual valee

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residval values, over their estimated useful lives.

Description of Assets . 1lseful Life

Plant and Equipment including:

- Compuiters, Printers and related Accessoties 3 Years

- Computer Servers and Networks : 3 Years

- Electronic Equipments 8 years

- Air Conditionets : 10 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Fuarniture & Fixtures - 7 years

Leasehold Improvements 3-5 years or leas;:Op‘:;od, whichever is
All other assets (including vehicles) Rates p&?‘g?;i;ﬁ::ﬁ?gg‘:? I w

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method over the useful lifes of the assets. The depreciation charge for each
period is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The residual values is considered as nil,
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NIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
. CIN: U72300DL200SPLC176254
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s camying amount is written down immediaiely to its recoverable amoum if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount,
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within
other gains/ (losses).

Intangible assets _ -

Computer software - aequired

Separately acquired patents are shown at historical cost. They have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Education content/producis-Internally gencrated

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design, development and testing of identifiable and unique educational content /
products controlied by the Company are recognized as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

« it is technically feasible to complete the development so that it will be available for use;

* management intends to complete the content / products and use;

» there is an ability to use or sell content / products,

+ it can be demonstrated how the content / product will generate probable future economic benefits;

» adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the content / producet are available, and

» the expenditure attributable to the content / product during its development can be reliably measured,

Directly atiributable costs that are capitalized as part of the intangible include employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

Capitalized development costs are recorded s intangible assets and amortized from the point at which the asset is available for use.

Amortisation methods qnd periods -

-.Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over-their-estimated useful Hves which are as follows; -~ - - -+~ = -

Particulars Useful lifes
Internally generated (Software, content and products) 3-5 years
Acquired (Software, content and products) 3-3 years
Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of afl of intangible assets recognised as at April 1,
2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets.

Impairment of assets :

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying ameunt may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds ifs recaverable amount. The recoverable
dmount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the reooverable amount, Such a reversal is

made only to the exient that the asset’s carrying amount doss not exceed the carrying amount that would have heen determined, net of
depreciation or amotisation, if ne impairment loss had been recognised.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.
Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost nsing the effective interest method,

Provisions

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to defermine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as interest expense.

Employee benefits

i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wapes and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected o be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured &t the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are seftled. The [abilities are presented as current

-employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.




NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300D1.2008PLC176254
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations _
The liabilities for earmed leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method, The benefits are
discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporiing period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obhgahon
Remeasurement as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.
The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.
it) Post-employment ohligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
- Defined benefit plans such as Gratuity and Cotnpensated Absences.
- Defined contribution plan such as Provident Fund, Superannuation Find, Pension Fund and National Pension System.
Gratuity
The Hability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obhgatmn is calculated annually by
actugries using the projected unit credit method. .
The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in Rs. is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference fo market yields at the end of the reporting peried on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
ohligation. '
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair valye of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.
Remensurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in

which they occur; directly in-other comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamings in the statement-of changes in equity and -~

in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit oblipation are recogmized immediatcly in profit or loss as past service cost.
Compensated absences

Ligbility in respect of compensated absences is provided for both encashable leave and those expected to be availed. The Company has
defined benefit plans for compensated absences for employees, the liability for which is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at
the end of the year using projected unit credit method. Any gain or loss arising out of such valuation is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss Bs income or expense as the case may be.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expecied to be availed within twelve months from the end of the year are treated as short
term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected undiscounted cost of accumulated compensated
absences expected to be availed based on the unutilized entitlement at the vear end.

Provident fund

The Company makes mntrlbuhon to the “NIIT LIMITED EMPLOYEES® PROVIDENT FUND TRUS'I" which is a defined benefit plan
to the extent that the Comipany has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the trust and
the notified interest rate. The Company’s obligation in this regard is actuarially determined using projected unit credit method and provided
for if the circumnstances indicate that the Trust may not be able to generate adequate refurns to cover the interest rates notified by the
Government.

The Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Superannuation

The Company makes defined contribution, to the Trust established for the purpose by the Holdmg Company. Coniribution made towards

“superannuation fund maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company has no further obligations beyond its monthly

contributions. Contribution made during the vear is charged te Statement of Profit and Loss.

Pension Fund

The Company makes defined contribution to a government administered pension fund towards it”s pension plan on behalf of its employees.
The Company has no further obligations beyond its monthly confributions, The coniribution towards Employee Pension Scheme is charged
to Statement of Profit and Loss.

National Pension System

The Company makes defined contribution towards National Pension System for certain employees for which Company has no further
obligation. Contributions made during the year are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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' CIN: U72300DL2008PLC1 76254
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Share capital

Equity share capital _ _

Issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as equity share capital in equity. Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issuance of new
equily shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Earnings per share

i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to gwners of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the financial year. ' '

i} Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

* the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equify shares, and

+ the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of afl dilutive
potential equity shares.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an arderly transaction between market
participants aft the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of & principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

All sssots and liabilities for which fair velue is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
“hierdrchy, described s follows, based or the lowest level input that 5 significant fo the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes Hsted equity instruments, traded
bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price, The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock
exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing net asset value.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example foreign exchange forward contracts) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all signiffeant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: I one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the
case for unlisted equity securities, contingent constderation and indemnification asset inchzded in level 3.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole} af the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

Critical acconnting estimates and judgements
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, Labilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively,
information about significant areas of estimation/uncertainty and judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the financial statements are as follows:

- Measurement of defingd benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions - refer note 2 o.

- Measurement of useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment - refer note 2 j-

- Fair value measurement of financial instruments - refer note 2 r. :

- Judgement required te determine probability of recognition of deferred tax assets and MAT credit entitlement - refer note 2 £,

There are no major assumptions and estimation that have a significant risk of resulting in 2 material adjustment within the next financial
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CIN: U72300DL2008PLC176254
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

2.2  Recent accounting pronouncements

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IND> AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers : On March 28, 2018, the MCA naotified the IND AS 115, The core principle of this
IND AS is that an eniity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amouni that
refects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. Further the new standard
requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's
contracts with customers. .

Ind A8 115, establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services o a customer.

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. This new standard requires revenue
to be recogmzfed when promised goeds or services are transferred to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Adoption of the new rules conld affect the timing of revenue
recoguition for certain transactions of the Company. Ind AS 115 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2019 using either
one of two methods: (i) retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 dccounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors, with the option to elect certain practical expedients as defined within Ind AS 1135 (the full
retrospective method); or (ii) retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 115 recognized at the date of initial
application (I April 2018} and providing certain additional disclosures as defined in Ind AS 115 (the modified refrospective method).

The Company continues 1o evaluate the available transition methods and its contractual arrangements. The ultimate impact on revenue
resulting from the application of Ind AS 115 will be subject to assessments that are dependent on many variables, including, but not
limited to, the terms of the contractual arrangements and the mix of business. The Company's considerations also include, but are not

. limited to, the comparability of its financial statements and the comparability within its industry from application of the new. standard to.its

contractual arrangements. The Company has established an implementation team to implement Ind AS 115 related to the recogrition of
revenue from contracts with customers and it continues to evaluate the changes to accounting system and processes, and additional
disclosure requirements that may be necessary,

Upon adoption the Company expects there to be & change in the manner that variable consideration in certain revenue arrangements is
recognized from the current practice of recognizing such revenue as the services are performed and the variable consideration is earned to
estimating the achievability of the variable conditions when the Company begins delivering services and recognizing that amount over the
contractual period. The Company also expects a change in the manner that it recognizes certain incremental and fulfilment costs from
expensing them as incurred to deferring and recognizing them over the contractual period. A reliable estimate of the quantitative impact of
Ind AS 115 on the financial statements will only be possible once the implementation project has been completed. :
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FINANCIAL ASSETS

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured, considersd pood
Unsecored, considerad doubtful
Less: Provision for doubiful debts
Taotal

Other Flnancial Assefs
Seaurity Depasits Reccivable
Secured, sonziderad good

Unibilled Revenee
Unbilled Reveme
Interest Recelvable

Other Receivables

Long term deposits with bank

~With criging! maturity of more than 12 months

Eaans to related parties
Unsecured, considered pood
Total

Cash and cash equivalents;
Balanee with banks
-Current Accounts
-Bank deposits with otiginal meturity of 3 months or less
Cash an hand
Total

Bank Balances other than above
-With ociginal maturily of more than 3 months and epto 12 manths
Total

NOT Institute of Frocess Exceflence Limited

CIN; T72300DL200SPLC1 76254
Notes (o the Financial Statem ents for the year ended March 31, 2013

LAmount in Bs. thousands, unless otherwise statad)

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Curreat
2715548 2037824 2479.70
212164 1,169 06 L1178
[2.123.64) (1 169.06) [,117.75)
27,15546 20,378,24 847970
March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 1, 2016 March 31, 2018 March 31,2007 April 1, 2016
Non Current Current
. - - kX vi] 30.00 37.50
- - - 30.60 3800 3150
- - - 160.03 24,228.28 1741233
- - - 160.08 2423828 1741233
- - - B760 .64 - $.397.42 4,070.08
- N 8,769.64 835742 4,070.08
- - - - 1,288.16
- . - - - 128516 _
15907 159.07 133.48 - - -
15907 159.67 123,48 - - -
- - - 134, 000,00 124,000.00 £5,000.00
159.07 159.07 123.48 192,080,723 156,655,70 107,809.07
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 April 1, 2016
206165 1870216 12,68024
5,000.00 - 22.000.00
- - 20.37
T061.66 18,702.16 40,500,661
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
- 16,000.00 -
=z 10.000.00 -




NIIT Institate of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: UT2300DL20M8SPLC176254
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 )
{(Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax assets (Net)
The balance comprises tenporary differences attributable to: 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2006
Provisions ' : : 585.12 - -
Defined benefit obligations 1,260.98 ) - -
Tax impact of difference between cammying amount of fixed assets 1,811,33 - -
in the financial stztements and as per the income tax caleulation. :
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlernent 9,356.99 10,489.01 9.277.87
Net Deferred tax asscis 13,014.42 14,439.01 9,2'71.87
Movement in deferred tax assets
Empl Minimum alternate
Fixed Assets mployee Provisions tax credit Total
benefits 3
entitlement

Atl April 2016 - - - 9,277 87 9,277.87
{charged)/credited:

- to profit or loss - - - 1,211.14 1,211.14
At 31 March 2017 - - - 10,489.01 10,489,017
{charged)/credited:

- to profit or loss 1,81.33 1,047.72 (1,132.02) 2,312.15

o 21326 . L 2326
1,811.33 1,260.98 9,355.99 13,014,42
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NIFT Institate of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL200SPLCIT6254
Notes to the Financial Statementy for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

OTHER ASSETS
March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 1, 2016 ~ March 31,2018 Mareh 31,2017 April 1, 2016
Noxt Current Current
Advances recoverable in cash or in ldnd
Secured, considered good i
Unszcored, conzidered good - - - 965,50 6,179.61 5,972.53
Unsecured, considerad doubtful - - : . 263.57 25345 8966
Less: Provision for doubtful advances - - - {263.57) (253.45) (89.66)
(A) - . - 965,50 6,179.61 5.972.53
Other Advances .
a)  Advance payment of Fringe Benefit Tax - - 171.92 - -
Less: Provisien for Fringe Benefit Tax - - {171.92) - -
b}  Advance Income Tax 35,02557 3450467 41,261.78 . - -
Less : Proviston for Income Tax (14,90449) (13,122.86) (19,120.05) - - -
20,121.08 21,381.81 31,143,73 . - - -
{B) 20,121.68 21,381.81 31,143.73 - - -
Total (A+RB) 20,121.08 21,381.81 31 ,142.73 965.50 6,179.61 5,972.53

crarTERED &
3 CCOUNTANTS o

1 *
™
N2>




NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL2008PLC176254
Notes to the Financial Staterents for the year ended March 31, 2018
{Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)
8 Equity share capital i
) Autherized equity share capital

. Equity shares
Parficulars Number of Amount
) shares
As at April 01, 2016 25,000,000 250,000.00
Increase during the year ended March 31, 2017 - -
As at Mareh 31, 2017 _ 25,000,000 250,000.00
Increase during the year ended March 31, 2018 - -
As at Mareh 31, 2018 : 25,000,000 250,000.00
b) Movement in equity share capital
Equity shares
Particulars ' Number of Amount
" shares
As at April 01, 2016 . ’ : 22,000,000 220,000.00
lircrease during the year ended March 31, 2017 - -
As at March 31, 2017 22,000,000 220,000.00
Increase during the year ended March 31, 2018 - -
As at March 31, 2018 22,000,000 220,000.00

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders
in the ensning Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of
all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of ¢quity shares held by the shareholders.

c) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars As at
March 31, 2018 - March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
No. of shares % of holding| No. of shares* % of holding| No, of shares| % of holding
NIIT Limited 16,500,000 73% 16,500,000 75%| 16,500,000 5%
Genpact India Holdinps Mauritiug - - - - 5,500,000 25%
Genpact Consulting (Singapore) Pte. Ltd 35,500,000 5% 5,500,000 25% - -
Total 22,000,000 160% 22,000,000 100%| 22,000,000 100%

...... b) Terms/.rights aﬂachedto CQUETY-SIANEE e



NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL2003PLC176254
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2018
: {Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

9 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

i March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Eoss 20,355.01° . (3,446,68) {46,188.20)

Tatal Reserves and Surplusg : 20,355.01 (3,446.68) (46,188.20)
RESERVES AND SURPLUS DETAILS March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance ' (3.446.68) (46,188.20)
Profit for the year 2431344 42,790.51
Items of other comprehensive income recognized directly in retained earnings
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax ) {511.75) (48.99)

Total ' 20,355.01° (3,446.68)




NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited

CIN: U72300D1.2608PLC176254

Nates to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

10 FINANCIAL IJABILITIES
10(i} TRADE PAYARBLES

Sundry Creditors

10(ii) OTHER FINANCIAL LIARBILITIES
Other Payables - Employee
11 PROVISIONS

Provision for Employvee Benefits ;
-Frovision for Gramity
-Provision for Compensated Absences

12 OTHER LIABILITIES

Advances from Customers
Statutory Dues

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Current ' '
14,362.70 13.402.03 17.509.12
10,362.70 13,402,03 17,509.12
March 31, 2018 ‘March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Current
6,009.31 §,324.24 7.702.7%
6,009.31 8,324.24 7,702,779
Mareh 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Current
1,879.28 84532 590.23 .
1,752.00 2,372.00 200400
3,631.28 3.217.32 2,5%4,23
Mareh 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Current
589.82 487.95 462,80
777.79 2,320.88 2,606.45
1,367.61 2,808.83 3,069.25
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15

.. Contribution {o Provident and other Funds . ...

NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U723060DL2008PLC176254

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

13 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale o_f Services

OTHER INCOME
Interest Income
Provision/ Other Liabilities Written Back

Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net)
Other Non-Operating Income

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and Benefits

Employees Stock Option Expense
Welfare and Other expenses

{Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
136,192,50 195,865.26
1363192.50 195,865.26
Year ended

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2617

16,372.45 15,265.67
- 708.83
137.03 -
5.99 568.61
16,516.47 16.547.11
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
53,945.46 54,543.34
S 1 L+ I
66.22 409.33
340.09 336.51
56,530.88 57,186.73




INITT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300D1L2008PLC176254 )
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

16

17

Year ended
OTHER EXPENSES March 31, 2018 Mareh 31, 2017
Equipment Hiring 233.12 282.59
Freight and Cartage 0.10 34.43
Rent (net of recoveries) 1,967.91 2,163.87
Rates and Taxes - 500 5.00
Power & Fuel 253,38 280.20
Communication 1,531.11 454,47
Legal and Professionat 1,933.20 1,351.76
Management Cost Recovery by Holding Company 5,199.36 5,795.43
Travelling and Conveyance 2,678.45 3,484.91
Provision for Doubtful Debts - 954,58 51.30
Provision for Doubtful Advances and Deposits - 25345
Insurance 60.34 28.50
Repairs and Maintenance
- Plant and Machinery 468.96 279.12
- Buildinps 4,62 8.25
- Others 197.85 264.08
Consumables 39.76 84.22
Loss on Foreign Currency Transkatfon-and Transaction (net) 0.90 0.15
Security and Administration Services 63.14 95,75
Bank Charges 1.85 1.30
Marketing & Advertising Expenses 6.25 30.40
Sundry Expenses 153.83 24.72

15,753,71 15,069.75

Year ended
PAYMENT TO AUDITORS March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
As Auditor
- Audit Fee 100.00 100.00
- Tax Audit Fee 40.00 40.00
- Other 17.50 17.50
- Reimbursement of expenses (including GST) - 36.19

157.50 193.69




NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL2008PLC176234
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

18 Income tax expense
Year ended

{a) Income fax expense

Current tax

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017

Current tax on profits for the year 5,649.01 6,234.77
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods (92.81)
Total current tax expense _ 5,649.01 6,141.96

Deferred tax

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets (3,444.17)

(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities _

Decrease /(increase) in minimum alternate tax credit 1132.02 (1,186.16)

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods (24.98)

 Total deferred tax cxpense/(henefit) — (2,31215) ." (1,21 i.l4)

Income tax expense 3,336.86 4,930.82

Year ended

Mayrch 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit muttiplied by India’s tax rate:

Profit befere income tax expense 27,650.30 47,721.33
Tax at the Indian tax rate of (FY 2017-18 27.55%) (FY 2016-17 33.06%) 7,617.66 15,776.67
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

-~ Adjustment for Taxes relating to earlier years - (117.79)
- Utilization of previously unrecognized Tax losses : (618.14) (10,910.91)
- Deferred Tax Asset created on temporary difference (3,657.45) -

- Others (5.21) 182.85
Income tax expense : 3,336.86 4,930.82




NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CiIN: U72300DL2008PE.C176254
Nates to the Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2018
’ (Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)
19 Falr value measurements

(i) Fair value hierarchy

Ta provide indication about the reliability of the inputs used in detenninjng fair vatye, the Company has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard explained balow:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This inciudes listed equity
instruments, traded bords and mutual finds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds)
which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are
vatued using the closing net asset value. :

L.evel 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example foreign exchange forward
contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value -an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2,

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on obsacvable market date, the instrument is inclded in level 3.
This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3,

The Company’s policy is o recognize transfers into and transfers ouf of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of reporting
period.

(ii) Yaluntton technique vsed to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to valug financial instruments include:
« The vse of quoted market prices for similar instruments.

at the balance sheet date.
- The fair valus of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

Financial instruments by cetegory and hierarchy of measurcment
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Amortlsed cost Amortised cost __ Amortised cost

...~ The Tair yaiue of forward foreign exchange contracts is defermined using Mark to Market Valuation by the respeetive bank ... oo

Level 3 Level 3 Level 3
Finaneial assets
Trads receivables 2715546 20,378.24 8.479.70
Loans ' ’ 184,000.00 124.000.00 85.000.00
Cash and Bank Balances 7,061.66 28,702.16 46.900.61
Other Finanicial Assets 9.118.79 3281477 22,932.55
Total financkal asscés 227,335.91 205.895.17 157,312.86
Finmncial Babilities
Trade payables 10,362.70 13,402.03 17,509.12
Other Finaneial Liabilities 6,009.31 8.324.24 7.702.72
Total financial liabilites 16,372.01 21,726.27 25,211.91

As of March 31, 2018, March 33, 2017 and April 1, 2016, the fair value of cash and bank balances, frade receivables, other
current financial assets and liabilities, borrawings, trade payables approximate their carrying amount largely due to ths shart
term nature of these instrumenits.

For other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortised cost, the carrying amounts approximate the fair value.




NITF Institate of Process Excell Limired
CIN: U7Z300DL200SPLC176254

Nntes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
. {Amount jn Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

20 TFimancial risk managesent

The Company’s principal finencial ligbilities, ether than derivatives, comprise loans and berrowings, trads and other payables. The masn purpose of
these financial lighilities i1 to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees b0 support its operations. The Campany's prineipel
financial assets include loans, tradc and other receivables, and tash and short-term deposits thet derive directly fram fis operations.

The Company is exposed bo market risk, crodit risk and liguidity risk. The Company's seniar e the of these risks.
The Company’s senior is supparted by a financial risk commitbes fhat advises on financial risks and the sppropriate financial risk
fr k for the Company. The financial risk committee provid to the Company's senior that the

Company s financial risk activities are governed by rate policies and procedures and chat financial riskq are identified, measuned and
d in d: with the Company’s policies and risk oljectives. All dem-mrve ivities for rigk pur are carried out by

sp:cmhst tears that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervisisn. It is the Company’s policy that ne trading in devivatives for
specudative purposes may be undenaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these isks, which are

summarised below:

(A

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on ita obliation by the counter party resuiting in a fi ial loss. The maxi 1o the credi risk at
the repowting date iz primarify from trade receivables amounting 10'Rs. 27,155.48 thousand and Rs. 20,378 24 thousand as of 31 March, 2018 and
31 March, 2017, reapectively and unbilled revenue smouating to Rs. 16008 thousaud and Rs. 24,228, 2% thousand as of 31 March, 2018 and 31
March, 2017, respectively. Trade receivables and unbilled Bre typ i and are derived from rovenue earned Bwough
bsidiarits, government and other sory The Comp has uzged the exp d credit boss model te assess the impadrment

loss ar gain on trade receivables and unbilled revenue, and has provided it wherever appropriate. The following table gives the movement in
allowancs for expected credit loss for the year ended 31 March, 2018:

Reconciliation of inas allowance provision — Trade ceceivables
I FParticulars Amouni

Lozs altowanee oo April 1, 2016 11177
in ks allowsmee 51.30
Loss allowance on March 31, 2017 . 1,169,06

954,58
Loss allownnee on Bareh 31, 2015 2,123.64
(B) Liguidity rizsk
The Campany’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow ther ia g 1 from operations. The Company has

70 cutstanding boerowdngs cxcept term Joans and working capital limits from banks, The term [oans are secured apainsl hypolberation of the
vehicles {refer Note 14), and working capital limt i3 secured by a fiest charge on the book dabls of (he Company and by a second charge on
movable assels of the Comy . Hi . the Company beli that the working capital is sufficient (o meet its corfent requirements.

ne

liquidity risk is p d,

{1} Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the | maturitios of significant financisl lisbilities:
Contraemal amfurities of finanelal liabilities:
Less ihan 1 year- landz B 4 and § Total
years years

March 31, 2018

Trade payables _ 10,362,70 1036270

Giher fingncial liabilities 6.009.31 £.000.31

‘ToAal nom-derivetive Linbilitics 16,372.01 - - 16372.01

March 31, 2017

Trade payables 13,402.03 13,402 .03

Othes financial liabilities £33424 8.324.24

Toax) non-derirative liabitkies 21,736,27 - : - 2170627

April L, 2016

Trade payables 17,509,012 17,509.12

Qciee financial liabitities 270 1.702.79

Taotal non-derivative Iabilities bt BT | - - 2521191
{C)y Market risk

t wall fl

Markel risk is the tisk that the fair value of fiuture cash flows of'a fi t f ch in market prices. Market
tisk comprises (hree types of riske interest rate risk, currency r:sk and nthcr price risk, such s equlty price risk and eonmodity cisk. Pinancial
instruments affected by merket risk include doans and bores BS, d at FVTPL end derivative financial ingroments.

(i) Tnterast pase risk

Intetest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Bows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of shangss in market interest
raiey, There ane no significant barrowings on the fnancial statenonts, Hence, therz is no significant concentration of interest rats risk,

{ii} Foveign currency risk

Tha companmy has its operation in domestic region aod is pol exposed 1o foreign exchange risk srising from foreign currency transactions.




NIIT Institete of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL2008PLC176254
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

21 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A) Defined Contribution Plans .
The Group makes contribution towards Provident Fund (other than NIIT Limited and certain other domestic subsidiaries), Superannuation Fund and
Pension Scheme to the defined contribution plans for eligible employess.

The Company has charged the following costs in Contribution o Provident and Other Funds in the Statement of Profit and Loss:-

Particulars . Year ended

: March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Employers” Contribation to Provident Fund . 82592 710.32
Employers’ Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme 797.59. 679.24
Total ) ' 1.623.51 1.389.56

Contribution towards Superannuation Fund to the defined contribution plans includes following cost for Key Managerial Personnel:

Year ended
. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund 150.80 135.53
Employers” Contribution to Employees Pension Scheime 30.00 2990
Total : . w ' 130.30 165,43
B Do Bt B
1, Gratuity Fund
L. Funded
Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
i) Change in Present value of Obligation;-
Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year 2,453.32 1,991.23
Interest cost : 133.96 150.09
Current service cost . 506.00 423,00
Benefits paid (1.070.00) {123.00)
Acquisition adjustment ' : (147.00) 12.00
Actarial (gain) loss on obligations . 730.00 -

Present value of obligation as at the year end 2,606.28 2.453.32




NIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300D1L.2008PLC176254
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Fair value of Plan Assels as at the beginning of the year . 1,608.00 - 1,401.00
Acquisition adjustiment ’ _ (147000 {41.00)
Expecred return on Plan Assets : 34.00 114,00
Contributions 247.00 253,00
Benefits Paid (1,070.00) (123.00}
Actuarial {loss)/ gain on Plan Assets . 5.00 4.00
Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year 727.00 1,608.00
Actuary’s estimates of contributions for the next financial year is Rs. 1,879 thousand (March 31, 2017 Rs. 471 thousand).
Fair value of Plan Presentvalueof  Assets/ (obligation)
ity Amount of Asset! (Obligation) recognised in the Balance Shect:- Assets ag at the end of  obligation as af the recognised in
the year end of (he year Balance Sheet*
As at March 31,2018 727.00 2,600.28 (1,879.28)
As at March 31, 2017 1,608.00 245332 (845.32)
As at April I, 2016 L401.00 1,991.23 (590.23)
* Net of assets recognised in Balance Sheet Nil (Previous year Rs. 0.09 thousand)
' ’ Year ended
" Particalars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
iv) Net Gratuity Cost recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:-
Current service cost 506.00 423.00
Interest cost . 49.60 84,99
Expense recognised ie Statement of Profit and Loss 555.60 50799

¥) Gratuity Cost recognised in other comprehensive income:-
Nes Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised ditring the year ' 730.00 53.00
Return on plan asset (greater)less than discount rate {4.99) {4.01)

Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 725.01 48.99




NIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL200SPLC176254
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

. (Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Actual return on plan assets

. As at
v) Assumptions used fn accounting for gratuity plan:- March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Discount Rate (Per Annum) 7.00% 7.00% 7.75%
Future Satary Increase 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Expected Rate of refum on plan assets ’ 845% B.45% 9.10%

Estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, semonty, promotion and other relevant factors such ag
supply and demand in the employment market,

vi} Investment details of Plan Assets;-
The plan assets are maintained with Life nsurance Cotporation of India Gratuity Scheme. The details of investment maintained by Life Insurance
Corporation are not availsble with the Group and have not been disclosed.

The expected retum on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mamly the compensanon of plan assets held, assessed risk of asset
management, hxstoncal result of the return on plan assets.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in assumption Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption
e . MARN3L2017 T Mareh 312017 Maveh 3L AgEF T
Discount rate ] 0.50% {111.00) 120.00
Salary prowth rate : 0.50% 121.00 (113.00)
Withdrawal rate 5% 38.00 (38.00)
Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in assumption Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption
March 31, 201% March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018

Discount rate 0.50% {135.00) 145.00
Salary growth rate ' 0.50% 143.00 {134.00)
Withdrawal rate 3% (99.00) 102.00

The above sensitivity snalyses are based on a change in an assamption while holding alk other assumptions constant. In practics, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes in some of ihe assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensttivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions {he same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected umit credit method at the end of the Feporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit Hability recognised in the balance sheet.

Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are market volatility, changes in inflation,
changes in interest rates, rising longevity, changing economic environment, regulatory changes ete. The Company ensures that the investment positions

- are managed within an asset-liability matching framework that has bean developed to achieve investments which are in line with the obligations under the
employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the Company’s asset-liability matching objective is to match asseds to thc obligations by investing in
securities to match the benefit payments as they fall due.

The Company actively menitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash cutflows arising from
employee benefit obligations. The Coupany has not changed the processes used to manags its risks from previous periods. Investments are well
diversified, such that failure of any single investment should not have a material impact on the overall level of assets,




NIFT Insfitwte of Process Exccllence Eimited
CIN: UT2300DE2008FLCIT6254

Notes to the Financial Statements for ¢he year ended March 31, 2018 i
’ {Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated}

22 EARNIMNGS PER SHARE Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Profit awributable to Equity Sharcholders (Rs. thousand) {A} 24,313.44 42,790.51
Weighted average number of Equity Shares ouistanding during the 22,000,000 2,000,000
year (Nas.) - (B) ’
Nominal Valoe of Equity Shares {Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Bagic Earnings per Share (Rs.) {A/B) : 1.11 1395

-

'23 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AS PER ACCOUNTING STANDARD 18;

Related pariy refationship where conerol exists:
A. Holding Company - NITT Limeted

. Fellow Suhbsidiaries
NIT Institute of Finance Banking and Insurance Training Limited
NIT Yuva Jyoti Limited
Mindchzmpion Leamning Systems Limited
NIIT USA Inc, USA
NIOT Limited, UK
NIIT Malaysia 5dn. Bhd, Malaysia
NIIT West Aftica Limited
NIIT GC Limited, Manritis
MAT (Ireland) Limited
NIIT Learning Sclutions (Canada) Limited
Eagle intemnational Institute Inc. USA (w.e.f January 3, 2018)
Eagle Training Spain, SL.U :
NIIT Amilles WV, Netharlands Antill
' PT WIT Inidonesia, Indanesiz
NIIF China {Shanghai) Limited, Shanghai
NIIT Wuxi Service Quisourcing Training School, China (Memorandum of Understanding was executed to sell on April 1, 2017)
W WITT Information Technology Consuliing Limited, China (agreement to self entered oa March 31, 2018)
Su Zhou NIT Information Technology Consulting Limited, China
Changzhou NIIT Information Technology Consulting Limited, China
Zhangjiagzme NIIT Information Services Limited, China
21 Qingdao NOT Information Technology Company Limited, China (closed w.e.f. Janvary 31, 2018)
21 Chengmai NOT Information Technology Company Limited, China
23 Chongging An Dac Education Consulting Limited, Clina
. 24 Chonpqing NOT Education Consulting Limited, China
25 NIUT {NingXia) Education Technology Company Limited, China (incorporated w.e F. May 19, 2017) 4
26 Dafeng NET information technology Co., Limited, China (closed w.e.f, October 25, 2017)
27 Guizhou NIT information technology consalting Co., Limited, China
28 NIT {Guizhou) Education Technology Ce., Limited, China

‘Ooﬂﬂlﬁlh.hh}lx.li—w

licuidated w.c.f.

Other related partics with whom the Company has transacted:
) Parties of whom the Company iz ant associate:
Genpact India Holdings, Mauritius Till January 10, 2017
Geapact Consulting (Singapore) Pte. Eimited w.e.f Jamuary 11, 2017
Genpact India Private Limited

ii) Key Managerial Personncl;
Sanjeev Dhar- Manager
CGaurav Refhan - Chief Financial Officer

D. Key management personnel compensation

March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Short-term employee benefits 6,124.19 6,587.31
Post-employnent benefits 578.1% 332.50
_Share-based payment 40793 -
Total compensation 7,110.31 6,919.81
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NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
- CIN: U72300DL2003PLC176254

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 :

(Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)

E. Details of significant transactions and balances with related parties :

Nature of Transactions Holding Company Others Key Managerial Total
Personnel

|Services Rendered Nil 120,542.22 Nil| 120,542.22
Revenue {10,916.22) {159,836.45) . (Nil} {170,752.71)

Loan Given 184,000.00 Nil Nil 184,000.00

' {124,000.00) (Nil) (Nil) (124,000.00)

Interest received on foan given 14,407.99 Nil Nil 14,407.99
{10,960.85) (i) (Nil) (10,960.85)

Loan Given Received Back 124,000.00 il Nil 124,000.00
(%5,000.00) {Nil) {Nil) (85,000.00)

Recovery of Expenses By 1,564.97 Nil Nil 1,564.97

' — {2,254.71) (Nif) {Nil) (2.254.71)
Management Charges 5,129.36 Nil Nil 5,129.36
Qther Expenses (5,766.60) (Nil) {Nil) {3,766.60)
Remuneration Nil Nil 7.110.31 7.11031
(Nib) (Nil) (6,919.81) {6,919.81)

“F. Outstanding Balancess
Nature of Transactions Holding Company Others Key Managrial Taotal
Personnel

Receivable 8,752.45 18,309.89 Nil 27,062.34
{11,660.85) (7,224.60) (11.28) (18,856.73)

Loan Receivable 184,000.00 Nil Nil 184,000.00
' (124,000.00) (Nil) (Nil) (124,000.00)

Payable 2,316.87 Nil 139.66 2.456.53
(1,848.31) {Nil) (32.30% {1,880.61)

Previous year fipures are in parentheses,
G. Terms and conditions

All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates. The average interest rate on the other loans
during the vear was 8,40% - 9.40% (March 31,2017 - 10.50%).
All outstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash,




NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL2008PL.C176254
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rs. thousands, unless otherwise stated)
24 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is engaged in providing Education & Training. Services in a single geography. BRased on
“Management Approach” , as defined in Ind AS 108 — Segment Reporting, the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) evaluates the performance and allocates resources based on the analysis of performance of the
Company as a whole. Its operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single segment in the context of Ind

AS 108 — Segment Reporting.

25 LEASES
Operating Leases:
The Company has entered into leases for office premises and employee accommodations which are cancelable at
the option of the Company by giving the requisite notice. Aggregate payments during the year under operating
leases are as shown hereunder: .

Parfticulars Year ended Year ended

March 31 2018  March 31 2017
In respect of Vehicles - _ _ 1,038.11 990.30

Total N 1,967.91 2,163.87

TLIT357




NIUT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL2008PLCT 76254
Notes to the Financial Staterents for the year ended March 31, 2018

26 Tranmsition to Ind AS

These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The accounting policies set cut in note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018, the comparative
information presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April 1,
2016 (The company's date of wansition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, The company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in
financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and
ather relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected The company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is
set out in the following tables and notes.

A, Exemptions and exceptions availed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previons GAAP to Ind AS.

A.1Ind AS optional exemptions

A.1.1 Deemed cost )
Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the canrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the finencial

statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making
necessary adjustments. This exeraption has also been used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets and investment property covered by
Ind AS 40 Investrent Propetties.

Accordingly, The company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property at their previous GAAP

. camying value,

A 1.2 Fair value measurement of financial assets or liabilities st inifial recognition

Ind AS 109 requires to initially recognize financial assets and Habilities at faic value and if the fair value differs from transaction price, the dlﬂ'ercme is
recognized as gain or loss, The Company has elected to apply these requirements of initial recognition prospectively to fransactions entered on or afier the date
of transition.

A.2 Ind AS mandatory exceptions

A.2.1 Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance
with previous GAAP (after adfustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is abjective evidence that those estimates were in error.
Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The company made
cstimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of iransition as these were not required under previous GAAP:

- Impainnent of financial assets based on expectad credit loss mode).

A.2.2 Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requites an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets an the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the daie of

transition to Ind A8,




NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U7230DL2008PLC 176254
Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended March 3%, 2018
{Amount in Rs. thousands, untess ntherwise stated)
26 Transition to Fnd AS ( Cont.) :
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for priar petiods. The following tables represent the reconciliations from previous

GAAP to Ind AS. -
B.I Reconcillation of equity as af date of transition March 31,2017 gnd April 01, 2015 .
: : March 31, 2617 April I, 2016
MNotes  Previous GAAP* Adjustment IND-AS  Previous GAAP*  Adjustment IND-AS
ASSETS
Mon-current asses .
Property, plant and equipment 34452 - 34452 306.74 - 306.74
Intangibie Assets 15.62 - 15,62 673.46 - 673,45
Financial Assets
Other Fitancial Assets : 159.07 - 159.07 123.48 - 123,48
Deferred Tax Assets . 10,489.01 - 10,489.01 927787 - 9,277.87
Other Non-Current Asseis 2138181 - 21381.81 31,143.73 = 31,143.73
Tatal Non-current assets 32,390.03 - 32,390.03 41,525.28 - ALS2528
Current Assels
Financial Assets
Current Investments
Trade Receivables 20,378,24 - 20,378.24 8,479, 70 - 8.479.70
Cash and Bank Balances [8,702,16 - - 18,702.16 40,900.61 - 40,900.61
Cash and Bank Balances other than above 10,000.00 - 10,000.06 - . -
Other Financial Assets 156,655.70 - 156,655,590 107,809.07 - 107,809.07
Orther Cunrent Assets ’ 6,179.61 - 6,179.61 597253 - 5.972.53
Total Carrent Assets . 21121571 - 211,91571 163,161.91 = 163,168,921
TOTAL ASSETS _ 244,305.74 - 244,305,74 204,687.19 - 204,687.19
EQUITY AND LEABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 220,000.00 220,000.00 220,000.00 ) 220,000.00
Other Equity a&h (2,579.20) (B67.48) {3,446.68) {45,730.03) (458.17) (46,188.20)
TOTAL EQUITY 217421080 (B6T.4%) 216,553.32 174,269.97 {458.17) 173,811.80
. LIABILITIES
Current Liakilittes
Financial Lisbilities . .
Trade Payables 13,402.03 - 13,402.03 [7,508.12 - 17,502.12
Other Financial Liabililies akh : 745676 867.48 8324.24 7,244.62 458.17 7,702.79
Provisions ' ' 3,217.32 - 32§7.32 2,594.23 - 2,594.23
Other Current Eiabilities - 2.808.83 - 2,308.83 306925 - 3,069.25
26,884.94 867.48 27,752.42 30,417.22 458,17 30,875.3¢
TOTAL 244,305.74 - 2d4,305.74 204,687.19 - 204,687.19

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified 1o conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the f:u:posc of this Note,




NIIT Institute ¢f Process Excellence Limited
CIN: UT2300DL2008PLC176254
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in Rs, thousands, smless otherwise stated)

B.2  Reconciliatfon of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 3, 2017

March 31, 2017

Notes FPrevious GAAT*  Adjustment IND-AS
INCOME : —
Revenue fiom Operations - 195,865,256 - 195,865.24
Other Income 16,547.11 - 16,547.11
Total Revenue o 212,412.37 _ - 212,412.37
EXPENSES ) )
Emplayee Benefils Expense . a&b | 56,826.40 360,33 57,186.73
Professional & Technical Owtsourcing Expenses 91,502.88 - 91,502.88
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses ] 93168 - 931.68
Other Expenses 15,069.75 - 15,060.75
Total Expenses 164,330.71 360.33 164,691.04
Profit/ (Lass) before Excepiion:? items and Tax )  48,0581.66 (360.33) 47,721.33
Profit before Tax . ' 48,081,656 (360.33) 47,72033
Tax expense:
- Current Tax . ) . 6,141,946 - 614196
- Defered Tax {1211.14) - (121114
Profit for the period $3,150.84 [360.33) 42,790.51
Other Comprehensive Income ' :

............ - Items that will nat be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss -

a} Remeasurement of the defined benefit obligation i a i} (48,99) (48.99)

Total comprehensive income for the period _ ' 43,150.84 {400.3%) 42,741.52
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NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL2008PLC176254
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Transition to Ind AS { Cont.)
Reconciliation of equity

{Amount in Rs. thovsands, unless etherwise stated)

Netes to first time adoption:

" Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations

Particulars March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Total equity (Sharcholders' funds) as per previous GAAP (2,579.20) (45,730.03)
Add ALess) : Adjustment under Ind AS
Recognition of share based payments measured at fair value on grant date {867.48) (458.17)
Total equity as per Ind AS ' (3,446.68) {46,188.20)
Reconciliation of total comprehensive income
Particulars Year ended

: March 31, 2017
Net profit after tax as reported under previous Indian GAAP 43,150.84
Add f(Less) : Adjustment under Ind AS
Remeasurement of the defined benefit obligation 48.99
Recognition of share based payments measured at fair value on grant date (409.32)
Net profit after tax as per Ind AS (A) 42,790.51
Items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss {48.99}
Total (B) 48.99%
Total comprehensive income as reporied under Ind AS (A+B) 42,741.52 S
¢) Reconciliation of cash flows

Previous GAAT Adjustment IND-AS -

Net cash flow from operating activities 6,19569 - 6,195.69
Net cash flow from investing activitics (28,394.14) . (28,354.14)
Net cash flow from financing activities - - . -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (22,198.45) - (22,198.45)]

Both under previcus GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognized costs related fo it’s post employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial
valuation basis. Under the previous GAAP, reimbursements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the retum on the plan assets, excluding amounts
included in the net interest expense on the net benefit liability are recognized in the profit or loss for the year. Under Ind AS, these Remeasurement
are recognized in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. As a result, the profit for the year ended March 31, 2017 incréased by Rs.
48.99 thousand. There was no impact on the {otal equity as at April 1, 2016.

Share based payments :

Under the previous GAAP, the cost of equity settled employee share-based plan was recognized using intrinsic value method. Under Ind AS, the
cost of equity settled share-based plan is recognized based on fair value of the options as at grant date. Consequently, profit befare tax for the year
ended March 31, 2017 has decreased by Rs. 409.32 thousand and Rs 458.17 thousand the impact on the total equity as at April 1, 2016. The
Holding Company grants shares to the employees of the Group Company.




NIIT Institute of Process Excellence Limited
CIN: U72300DL2008PLC176254
- Notes to the Financia) Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
27 The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on May 11, 2018,

Previous years' figures have been regrouped and reclassificd, wherever necessary, to conform to those of the current years,

Signature to Notes '1' to '27' of these financial statements.

-For Ghosh Khanna and Company  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No,; 003366N | NIIT Instifute of Process Excellence Limited
Charte countants ' '
W NN .
; Amit Mittal Amit Roy Z 5
f Partner Director
Membership No. 508748 DIN - 07138197
. 0%
&
Place:Oungam Guuray R Dl
Dter My L1 2018 “Company Secreiany

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 11, 2018
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URiouA

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Hule_lﬂ{i} of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

107 Annual General Meeting —July 11, 2018

MName of the Member{s): |

Registered Address, |

Emall:

DP 1D No: [TTTTTTI L LT

Folio Ne. / Client 10 No.: [ | l[ l | | [ ‘ l| | |

I/We, being the memberis] of ... Sharesof the abave named Company, hereby appoint:

X 0CBIRIMEE o oo s HES R A R T LT e Address:
............................................................................................ E:miail
.................................... SN . suniroosasimssinanasrpiis sy

or failing Rim/her

BV MBI i s e TR R L Address;
............................................................................................. E-mall 1d:
.................................... SIgnature: ...

or failing him/her

T BRI st i i b b A S RS Address
........................................................................................ E-mail id;
................................... SIRRArE s o s e

as myfour proxy to attend and vote lon a pall) for mefus and on my/our behalf at the 107
Annual General Meeting of the Comipany, 1o be held on Wednesday, July 11, 2018 at 2.00 AM,
IST. at the Registered Office of the Company at 8, Balaji Estate, First Floor, Guru Ravi Das Marg,
Kalkaji, New Delhi—110018 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of sech reselutions as
are Indicated below,



UNIOUA
Resolution Resolution Ne.of Vote (Optional see
Number, Shares ~ Note 3]
Far Against
Crdinary Business
1 Adoption of the Audited Financial Statement of the
LCompany for the financial yvear ended March 21, 2018,
the reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon, .
2 Appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vijay K Thadani (DIN: ’
Q0042527) as Director, who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointmeant.
3 To appoint M/s, SCV & Co, LLP, Chartered Accountants,
New ODelhi (FRN 000235N/NSD0083) as Statutory
Auditor of the Company.
SEned this e day Of .o 2018
Aflix
Signature of Mamber ..o Revenue
Stamp not
Signature of Proxy halder|s) ... e s than

MNotes:

This form of proxy, in order to be effective, should tie duly stamped, completed,
signed and depasited at the registered office of the Company, nat later than 48 hours
before the commencement of the Annual General Meeting.

A proxy need not bea member of the Company. A persen can act as proxy on biehalf
af members nat exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of
the tatal share capital of the company carrying veting rights. A member holding more
than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may apoaint
a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other persan
or shareholder

It is optional to indicate your preference; If you leave the tor, against ar abstain
tolumn blank against any or all resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the
manner as he/she may deem appropnate.

Appainting a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in persan
If he so wishes,

For the resolution, explanatory statements and notes, please refer Notice of the
Annuzl General Meeting.




ATTENDANCE SLIP
10™ Annual General Meeting — July 11, 2018

P ID W il il S| ¢ 5 il ol

Folig No. / Client 1D No, : | | | ] [ [ | | | 1 | | | | | |

Nn,QFSharesheld [ | | | l | | | | |

I cartify that | am a membar/oroxy for the mamber of the Company
| hereby record my presence at the 10" Annual General Meeting of the Company held an
Wednesday, July 11, 2018 at 5.00 A.M. 15T, at the Registered Dffice of the Company at 8, Balaj
Estate, First Flogr, Guru Ravi Das Mar.g_, Kalkaji, New Delhi - 110019

Name-of the Member

Name of the Proxy

Signature

MNote: Please completa this Attendance Slip and hand it cver at the meeting venug.



